


























JAMES D. McKENNA
MICHAEL Q. DAVIS, JR.
McKENNA LAW, P.C.
109 East Main Street, Suite One
P.O. Box 6400
Bozeman, Montana 59771-6400
Telephone: (406) 586-4994
Facsimile: (406) 586-0418
E-mail: mckennalaw@onemain.com 

Attorneys for Defendant Edwin R. Meece

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF MONTANA

BILLINGS DIVISION

SHIRLEY EWAN, for herself and on ) Cause No. CV-09-72-BLG-RFC
behalf of all those similarly situated, )

)
Plaintiff, )

) BRIEF OF DEFENDANT EDWIN
vs. ) R. MEECE IN SUPPORT OF

) MOTION FOR COMPLETE
CITY OF LIVINGSTON, EDWIN R. ) SUMMARY JUDGMENT
MEECE, individually and as an agent )
of the City of Livingston, and the ) 
MONTANA MUNICIPAL )
INSURANCE AUTHORITY, )

)
Defendants. )

_____________________________________ )

I.   INTRODUCTION

Defendant Edwin R. Meece (“Meece”) has filed a motion for complete summary judgment,

and this brief is submitted in support of that motion.  The Plaintiff, Shirley Ewan (“Ewan”), filed a

complaint against the City of Livingston, Montana (“City”) and Meece, as an individual, setting forth

several claims for relief.  (It may be noted that the complaint also made claims against the Montana

Municipal Insurance [sic] Authority, but those claims have been dismissed.)  The Plaintiff’s claims
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with respect to Meece consist of alleged civil rights violations under 42 U.S.C. § 1983, and more

specifically violations of Ewan’s substantive and procedural due-process rights.

II.   FACTS

Shirley Ewan was employed for several years by the City, most recently as its finance

director.  Statement of Uncontroverted Facts, ¶ 1.  In 2006, Meece became the city manager and,

consequently, Ewan’s supervisor.  Statement of Uncontroverted Facts, ¶ 2.  The City was and

remains a commission-manager form of local government, and Meece therefore had statutory

authority to discipline and discharge Ewan.  Affidavit of Steve Caldwell, ¶ 3; § 7-3-304(13), MCA. 

On October 31, 2008, in his capacity as city manager, Meece discharged Ewan from her

employment.  Statement of Uncontroverted Facts, ¶ 4.  All of the claims in this litigation arise from

that discharge.

III.   ARGUMENT

A. Basic Standard for Summary Judgment.

Rule 56(c)(2), Fed.R.Civ.P., sets forth the standard for summary judgment:  “The [summary]

judgment sought should be rendered if the pleadings, the discovery and disclosure materials on file,

and any affidavits, show that there is no genuine issue as to any material fact and that the movant is

entitled to judgment as a matter of law.”  The party seeking summary judgment bears an initial

burden of informing the court of the basis for the motion, and of identifying those portions of the

pleadings, affidavits, and other papers on file, which demonstrate the absence of any genuine issue

of material fact.  Celotex Corporation v. Catrett, 477 U.S. 317, 323 (1986).  Once this burden has

been met, the opposing party cannot rely simply upon allegations or denials; rather, he or she must

set forth specific facts establishing a genuine issue of fact, for trial.  Anderson v. Liberty Lobby, Inc.,

477 U.S. 242, 248 (1986).  If the nonmoving party fails to raise a genuine factual issue, then “the
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moving party is entitled to judgment as a matter of law.”  Celotex, 477 U.S. at 323.

B. Meece Was Acting Within the Course and Scope of His Employment.

When Meece terminated Ewan, he was performing his duties as city manager, and was acting

within the course and scope of his employment.  As noted above, Livingston was and is a

commission-manager local government.  This form of government is authorized and described by

§§ 7-3-301, et seq., MCA.  Section 7-3-304, MCA, sets forth the duties of the city manager: 

7-3-304.  Duties of manager.  The manager shall: ... (4) direct, supervise, and
administer all departments, agencies and offices of the local government unit except
as otherwise provided by law or ordinance; ... (13) appoint, suspend, and remove all
employees of the local government except as otherwise provided by law or
ordinance....

The propriety of Meece’s actions is affirmed by the Affidavit of Steve Caldwell, attached to Meece’s

Statement of Uncontroverted Facts, as Exhibit B.

C. Meece Is Immune from Individual Liability.

The Montana Legislature has made it clear that state governmental entities are liable for their

wrongful actions, in appropriate cases:  “Every governmental entity is subject to liability for its torts

and those of its employees acting within the scope of their employment or duties whether arising out

of a governmental or proprietary function....”  § 2-9-102, MCA.  However, the legislature has also

made it clear that individual government employees are to be immunized for their non-criminal

behavior, when performing the duties of their employment.  Section 2-9-305, MCA, provides in part

as follows:  

   (1)  It is the purpose of this section to provide for the immunization, defense, and
indemnification of public officers and employees civilly sued for their actions taken
within the course and scope of their employment.
   (2)   In any noncriminal action brought against any employee of a state, county,
city, town, or other governmental entity for a negligent act, error, or omission,
including alleged violations of civil rights pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 1983, or other
actionable conduct  of the employee committed while acting within the course and
scope of the employee’s office or employment, the governmental entity employer,
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except as provided in subsection (6), shall defend the action on behalf of the
employee and indemnify the employee.

*  *  *
   (5)   Recovery against a governmental entity under the provisions of parts 1 through
3 of this chapter constitutes a complete bar to any action or recovery of damages by
the claimant, by reason of the same subject matter, against the employee whose
negligence or wrongful act, error, omission, or other actionable conduct gave rise to
the claim.  In an action against a governmental entity, the employee whose conduct
gave rise to the suit is immune from liability by reasons of the same subject matter
if the governmental entity acknowledges or is bound by a judicial determination that
the conduct upon which the claim is brought arises out of the course and scope of the
employee’s employment, unless the claim constitutes an exclusion provided in
subsections (6)(b) though (6)(d).   1

One of the public policy considerations behind the statute quoted above is the prevention of

a double recovery by a claimant.  In Kiely Construction, LLC v. City of Red Lodge, 2002 MT 241,

312 Mont. 52, 57 P.3d 836 (2002), a construction company brought claims against the City of Red

Lodge and individual members of the city council, arising from a real estate development project. 

The claims consisted essentially of abuse of discretion and § 1983 claims.  Prior to trial, the District

Court granted summary judgment to individually named members of the city council.  That ruling

was based on § 2-9-305, MCA.  On appeal, the Montana Supreme Court upheld that decision, with

the following comments:

All the counts alleged in Kiely’s complaint and amended complaint turn on
actions performed by the individually named defendants, while serving as members
of the city council.  The council members’ actions served as the factual basis for
Kiely’s claims and damages under § 76-3-625(1), MCA, and [42 U.S.C.] § 1983.... 
The recovery sought by Kiely against both Red Lodge and the city council members
arose out of the same subject matter, and because the intent behind § 2-9-305(5),
MCA, is to prevent a plaintiff from recovering from both the governmental entity and
the individuals acting on behalf of that entity for the same conduct, we conclude
Kiely is barred from recovering awards against the individual council members,
separate and in addition to the awards it recovers from Red Lodge.

 Subsection (6) of the statute sets forth exceptions to the immunity and indemnification of the individual employee.  Those exceptions
1

involve cases of criminal conduct, interference with the defense of the claim, or behavior constituting oppression, fraud, or malice.  The complaint
in this cases alleges none of these things, with the sole and minor exception that at ¶ 16, the complaint claims that the Defendants acted with the intent
to injure the Plaintiff, and with malice and reckless disregard of the Plaintiff’s rights.  No evidence of any kind has been adduced to support such
a claim.
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2002 MT 241, ¶ 88, 312 Mont. 52, 57 P.3d 836.  This reasoning applies to the case now before this

Court, since Ewan’s claims against Meece arise from the same subject matter as do her claims

against the City.

D. The City Has Acknowledged That Meece’s Conduct Occurred Within the
Course and Scope of His Employment.

The City of Livingston has acknowledged that when Ewan was discharged, Meece was acting

within the course and scope of his employment.  Affidavit of Steve Caldwell, attached to Meece’s

Statement of Uncontroverted Facts, ¶ 3.  In Kenyon v. Stillwater County, 242 Mont. 142, 835 P.2d

742 (1992), the Montana Supreme Court noted the significance of such an acknowledgment, and

used it as a basis for upholding the dismissal of an individual county employee from a lawsuit.  In

that case, the plaintiff was discharged from her employment as a secretary in the county attorney’s

office.  She brought a wrongful-discharge and age-discrimination case against the county and the

county attorney as an individual.  The District Court granted summary judgment for the county

attorney and the plaintiff appealed.

In upholding the District Court’s decision, the Supreme Court considered the language of §

2-9-305, MCA, and the fact that the county commissioners agreed that the county attorney was acting

within the scope of his official duties when he discharged the plaintiff.  The court reached its

conclusion with the following observations:

The county was named as a defendant on the basis of its liability for [the
county attorney’s] conduct within the scope of his duties....  Given the
acknowledgment by the commissioners that the conduct on which the action is based
arose out of the course and scope of [the county attorney’s] official duties, it is clear
that [the county attorney] himself is immune from liability under § 2-9-305(5), MCA
(1987).

254 Mont. at 147, 835 P.2d at 745.

IV.   CONCLUSION
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When Edwin Meece discharged Shirley Ewan from her employment with the City of

Livingston, he was doing his job as required by Montana statutes and the Livingston City

Commission.  While the City may or may not be liable for these actions, Meece is immune under

well-established law.  His motion for summary judgment should be granted.

DATED this 8  day of October, 2010.  th

/s/  James D. McKenna                                               
       JAMES D. McKENNA

McKENNA LAW, P.C.
       Attorney for Defendant Edwin R. Meece

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on this 8  day of October, 2010, a true and correct copy of the foregoingth

document was served on the following persons by the following means:

      All             CM/ECF
                        Hand delivery
                        First-class mail

1. Michael J. San Souci
Attorney at Law
2135 Charlotte St., Suite 1A
Bozeman, MT  59718
mjsansouci@aol.com 
Attorney for Plaintiff

2. Michael J. Lilly
BERG, LILLY & TOLLEFSEN, P.C. 
One West Main Street
Bozeman, MT  59715
mikelilly@berglawfirm.com 
Attorney for Defendant City of 
Livingston

3. Kevin C. Meek
UGRIN, ALEXANDER, ZADICK & 
HIGGINS, P.C.
#2 Railroad Square
Great Falls, MT  59403
kcm@uazh.com 
Attorney for Defendant MMIA

      /s/ James D. McKenna                         
 JAMES D. McKENNA

McKENNA LAW, P.C.
Attorney for Defendant Edwin R. Meece
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THE MUNICIPAL COURT OF THE CITY OF BOZEMAN 
COUNTY OF GALLATIN, STATE OF MONTANA

STATE OF MONTANA, ) Case No. TK-12-5560
)

Plaintiff, )
) ORDER AND MEMORANDUM

vs. )
)

ANDREW CLAYTON KEMP, )
)

Defendant. )
____________________________________)

The Defendant in this case has filed a Motion to Suppress Evidence, asking the Court to

suppress evidence gathered by the Bozeman Police Department in connection with the Defendant’s

arrest for Driving While Under the Influence of Alcohol, in violation of § 61-8-401, MCA.  The

Plaintiff opposes the motion.  Both the Plaintiff and the Defendant have filed briefs in support of

their respective positions, and a hearing in this matter was held on May 1, 2013.  In consideration

of the evidence presented at the hearing, together with applicable law, and for the reasons set forth

below;

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Defendant’s motion is DENIED.

MEMORANDUM

1. Facts.  Bozeman Police Officer Matthew Slayton (“Slayton”) was on patrol in

Bozeman at approximately 2:00 a.m. on November 15, 2012.  He was in a police vehicle in the

general area of 7  Avenue and Main Street.th

At approximately 2:05 a.m., Slayton received a transmission from law enforcement dispatch,

consisting of an “attempt to locate” call.  The transmission indicated that a suspected “hit and run”
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vehicle, a red pickup truck, was traveling east on Story Street and then North on South 9  Avenue. th

The dispatch further stated that the pickup had or might have some physical damage to the driver’s

side of the vehicle.  Shortly thereafter, Officer Slayton, eastbound on Main Street between 7  andth

8  Avenues, saw a red pickup, apparently stopped at a stop sign, at the intersection of 7  and Main,th th

pointed to the north.  The officer made a right-hand turn onto South 7  and then did a U-turn to getth

behind the red pickup.  As shown on a video recording introduced in evidence at the hearing in this

case, the officer had a good view of the left side of the red pickup, and noticed a dent near the front

fender.  The officer then pulled behind the truck and activated his overhead flashing lights.  The

officer then made contact with the driver of the truck, Defendant Andrew Kemp.  That contact

eventually developed into an arrest of Mr. Kemp and the charges now pending in this case.

The Defendant claims that Officer Slayton’s “stop”  of the Defendant was illegal.  The Court1

concludes that the “stop” occurred when the officer activated his overhead flashing lights, from a

position immediately behind the Defendant.  This action unmistakably notified the Defendant that

he was not free to leave the area.  Therefore, the legality of the officer’s action depends upon the

facts and circumstances existing immediately prior to the activation of the flashing lights.

2. Legal Standard.  There is little disagreement between the parties as to the legal

standard for the permissibility of a traffic stop.  Both parties agree that a traffic stop must be based

on particularized suspicion.  The Montana Supreme Court has made it clear that “particularized

suspicion” requires the following: (1) objective data from which an experienced police officer can

make relevant inferences; (2) a resulting “particularized suspicion” that an occupant of the vehicle

in question is or has been engaged in wrongdoing.  Sate v. Gopher, 193 Mont. 189, 631 P.2d 293

(1981).  See also § 46-5-401(1), MCA.  As correctly noted by the State in its response to the

Defendant’s motion, in any given case the analysis is driven by the particular facts and circumstances

present.  State v. Gopher, supra.  

In this case, the traffic stop occurred about five or six blocks from the reported first location

 It is interesting that the Defendant’s vehicle was not moving at the time the officer activated his flashing lights.  This was therefore more
1

of a “detention” than a stop, and begs the question of whether a detention is less invasive, and therefore requires less factual and legal justification,
than does a traffic stop of a moving vehicle.  See State v. Reiner, infra, ¶ 19.  The Court finds, however, that resolution of this case does not require
the Court to count the number of angels dancing on the head of that particular pin.
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of the suspicious truck.  Also, the stop occurred north and east of that reported location, consistent

with the direction of travel indicated by the dispatcher.  The color of the truck was similar or the

same as that indicated by the dispatcher.  The stop occurred less than thirty minutes after the officer

first received the dispatch.  Under these circumstances, the officer had a particularized suspicion,

although not necessarily knowledge or certainty, that the vehicle he stopped was involved in a “hit

and run” incident.  The State has met the legal standard for justification of the traffic stop.

In his reply brief, the Defendant cites State v. Reiner, 2003 MT 243, 77 P.3d 210, and State

v. Lee, 282 Mont. 391, 938 P.2d 637 (1997).  Both of these cases are distinguishable from the present

case.  In Reiner, the offense under investigation was Driving While Under the Influence, and the

initial report to law enforcement did not provide any reasons for why the caller believed the driver

was intoxicated.  Reiner, ¶ 3.  In reversing the District Court’s approval of the investigative stop, the

Supreme Court noted that for a citizen’s report of wrongdoing to be considered reliable by a peace

officer, it must contain detail to provide a basis for the citizen’s belief that a criminal act was taking

place.  The court concluded that the informant’s belief was not supported by either the reasons for

that belief or by the officer’s personal observations, and therefore did not form a particularized

suspicion for the traffic stop.  Id., ¶ 17.  The Lee decision is very similar.  An anonymous caller

stated that she “believed” Lee was driving while under the influence, and gave a description of the

suspect vehicle.  The caller did not explain the reasons for her belief, and the investigating officer

acknowledged that the suspect vehicle was not speeding, weaving, or swerving on the road.  This

lack of information, either from the anonymous caller or the investigating officer, caused the

Supreme Court to conclude that the officer did not have the required particularized suspicion to make

the traffic stop.  In the present case, on the other hand, the offense under investigation was Leaving

the Scene of an Accident, or “hit and run.”  When Officer Slayton saw damage to the suspect vehicle,

that information, combined with the other factors mentioned above, provided the requisite

particularized suspicion for the officer’s subsequent investigation.

CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated above, the Defendant’s Motion to Suppress Evidence is denied.

////
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DATED this 4  day of June, 2013.th

/s/                                                                    
JAMES D. McKENNA
Acting Municipal Court Judge

cc: Susan Wordal, City Attorney’s Office (via email: swordal@bozeman.net)
Andrew J. Breuner (via email: andy@breunerlaw.com)
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